2001

John Collins and June Collins v. Sandy City Board of Adjustment and Sandy City Corporation, a municipal corporation : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

The Opinion of the Utah Court of Appeals affirming the order of summary judgment in favor of the Sandy City Board of Adjustment was entered December 21, 2000. 2000 UT App 371 [reproduced in Addendum as Exhibit “A”] The Utah Supreme Court granted the Petition for Writ of Certiorari in this case by Order dated June 28, 2001 and has jurisdiction pursuant to §78-2-2(5) Utah Code Ann. (1953, as amended).

ISSUE PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

The issue presented for review is whether the Court of Appeals correctly adopted the rule in *Federated Department Stores, Inc. v. Moitie*, 452 U.S. 394 (1981) to govern determination of issues where the law has changed but a party fails to appeal.

Standard of Review: When exercising its certiorari jurisdiction, the Utah Supreme Court reviews the decision of the court of appeals not of the trial court. *Carrier v. Pro-Tech Restoration*, 944 P.2d 346, 350 (Utah 1997). When reviewing questions of law, the Utah Supreme Court accords no particular deference to the conclusions of law made by the court of appeals but reviews them for correctness. *Allen v. Utah Dep’t of Health*, 850 P.2d 1267, 1269 (Utah 1993).

CONTROLLING LEGAL PROVISIONS

None. This case involves the interpretation of case law.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This case involves an action by John Collins and June Collins against the Sandy City Board of Adjustment and Sandy City Corporation for review of a decision by the Sandy City Board of Adjustment denying non-conforming use status for certain real properties located in Sandy City owned by John and June Collins that had been utilized as short-term rentals prior to the enactment by Sandy City of an ordinance prohibiting such short-term rentals.

On October 27, 1998 the Petitioners John and June Collins filed an application for non-conforming use status with the Sandy City Board of Adjustment. This application was denied on November 12, 1998. The Petitioners filed a Petition for Review on December 11, 1998. (R. 1-6) Cross motions for summary judgment were subsequently filed (R. 15-16; 140-141) and the Motions were argued on August 16, 1999. (R. 431)

The District Court granted the Respondent's Motion for Summary Judgment and denied the Petitioners' Motion. (R. 446-448; Add. 1-3) Petitioners filed this appeal on December 16, 1999. (R. 449-450). On December 21, 2000 the Utah Court of Appeals affirmed the summary judgment of the District Court. [2000 UT App. 371]. The Utah Supreme Court granted the Petition for Writ of Certiorari by Order dated June 28, 2001.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Petitioners are the owners of certain real properties located within the boundaries of Sandy City. For a lengthy period of time prior to March, 1996, the

Petitioners utilized the properties as short-term rental properties, sometimes referred to as “ski rentals”. In March, 1996 the respondent Sandy City Corporation issued a cease and desist order requiring the petitioners to cease using the properties for that purpose. (R. 28) Sandy City did not at that time pass an ordinance prohibiting short-term rentals but relied instead on the existing ordinance, arguing that such use was already prohibited.

The Petitioners filed an appeal to the respondent Sandy City Board of Adjustment in 1996, which upheld Sandy City’s interpretation of the Sandy zoning ordinances to preclude such use by the petitioners. Petitioners appealed that decision to the Third District Court and the District Court upheld the decision of the Sandy City Board of Adjustment. The Revised Summary Judgment and Order of Dismissal was signed November 17, 1997 and dated September 29, 1997. [Third District Court Case No. 960905929CV] (R. 210)

On March 26, 1998 the Utah Court of Appeals rendered a decision in a case involving precisely the same issues as those presented by the Petitioners herein in the above-referenced 1996 case which was pending at the same time as the petitioners’ 1996 case, in *Brown, et. al. vs. Sandy City Board of Adjustment; and Sandy, a political subdivision of Utah*, 957 P. 2d 207 (Utah App. 1998) That case, decided March 26, 1998, held that Sandy City’s interpretation of the Sandy City Development Code to prohibit leases of less than thirty days in residential zones was not a correct interpretation, i.e., Sandy City had no valid ordinance prohibiting short-term leases in Sandy City. The respondent Sandy City then imposed a temporary moratorium on

short-term rentals, allegedly effective March 27, 1998, and subsequently enacted ordinances prohibiting short-term leases. (R. 36-45)

On or about October 27, 1998, the petitioners filed an application for determination of non-conforming status on their properties with the Sandy City Board of Adjustment. (R. 50) That application was heard by the Board on November 12, 1998. The Sandy City Board of Adjustment denied the petitioners' application for determination of non-conforming use status on the petitioners' properties, apparently relying on the 1996 District Court decision which denied the Motion for Summary Judgment filed by John and June Collins and granted the Motion for Summary Judgment filed by Sandy City Corporation. (R. 446-448) Petitioners filed a Petition for Review of that decision in Case No. 980912601 in the Third District Court. On cross motions for summary judgment the District Court ruled that because the Petitioners/Appellants had not appealed the prior order in Third District Court Case No. 960905929CV, that case was *res judicata* in the present case (Case No. 980912601) and precluded the Petitioners/Appellants from obtaining non-conforming use status on the subject properties.

The Utah Court of Appeals affirmed the decision of the lower court, holding that because the Appellants, John Collins and June Collins, chose not to pursue an appeal of the 1996 District Court decision, they could not benefit from the change of law exception to *res judicata* where, had they chosen to appeal, the change of law would have been obtained. [2000 UT App. 371]

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The Utah Court of Appeals erred in its holding that the intervening change in the law in this case did not operate as a defense to Sandy City's claim that the 1998 suit filed by Mr. and Mrs. Collins was barred under principles of *res judicata* by the Summary Judgment entered in the 1996 suit between the same parties.

Barring the Petitioners from proceeding in the 1998 suit does nothing to further the traditional purposes of issue preclusion or claim preclusion. Applying *res judicata* as a bar in this case only perpetuates an erroneous ruling without valid reasons.

ARGUMENT

POINT I: THE COURT OF APPEALS INCORRECTLY ADOPTED THE RULE IN FEDERATED DEPARTMENT STORES v. MOITIE TO GOVERN DETERMINATION OF ISSUES WHERE THE INTERVENING LAW HAS CHANGED BUT A PARTY FAILS TO APPEAL.

The Court of Appeals ruled in this case that in a situation where one party in cases litigating the same legal issue chooses not to pursue an appeal, that party may not benefit from the change of law exception to *res judicata* where had that party chosen to appeal the change of law would have been obtained. 2000 UT App 371, 16 P. 3d 1251, 1256 (Utah App. 2000) In so holding, the Utah Court of Appeals failed to properly apply additional principles recognized by the Utah Supreme Court as necessary in cases where issue preclusion is in dispute. The case of *Norman v. Murray First Thrift & Loan Co.*, 596 P. 2d 1028 (Utah 1979) requires the lower court, in

examining the issue of whether principles of res judicata should constitute a bar to this action, to further inquire as to whether the controlling facts or legal principles have changed significantly since the prior judgment. In that case the Utah Supreme Court stated:

“To determine whether it is appropriate to apply collateral estoppel necessitates three further inquiries: First, whether the issues presented in the current litigation are in substance the same as resolved in the prior litigation; second, *whether the controlling facts or legal principles have changed significantly since the prior judgment* [emphasis added]; third, whether other special circumstances warrant an exception to the normal rules of preclusion.” At 1032.

The Utah Court of Appeals in the instant case agreed that it is the general rule that a subsequent change in the operative facts or the controlling law has generally relieved a party from the application of res judicata, and further agreed that, in the instant case, the law had changed since the 1996 suit. *Collins v. Sandy City Board of Adjustment*, 16 P. 3d 1251, 1254 (Utah App. 2000). The Utah Court of Appeals declined to apply the general rule in this case, relying on the case of *Federated Department Stores, Inc. v. Moitie*, 452 U.S. 394, 101 S. Ct. 2424 (1981).

The Court of Appeals asserts that *Moitie*, supra, is a case strikingly similar to the case Mr. and Mrs. Collins have brought. If one examines the facts in each case, however, the instant case bears little resemblance to the situation presented in *Moitie*. In the *Moitie* case, the change in the law that occurred was entirely unanticipated, whereas in this case, *Brown*, supra, was a fully prepared appeal pending before the Court of Appeals when the Collins’ 1996 District Court decision was rendered. It made no sense to file an appeal when a fully briefed appeal was already pending.

Judicial economy would dictate that Mr. and Mrs. Collins simply await the outcome in *Brown*.

Unlike the petitioners in *Moitie*, Mr. and Mrs. Collins were not forum shopping and they were not trying to mount a collateral attack.. Further, unlike the *Moitie* case, the Petitioners in this case were not originally parties to the action that resulted in the *Brown* decision.

Since *Brown* ruled there was no ordinance in Sandy City prohibiting short-term rentals, *Brown* also essentially established that it was legal for everyone, *including Mr. and Mrs. Collins*, to rent, or to have rented, residential property in Sandy for the short-term. Sandy City, having been a party to the *Brown* case as well as the case with Mr. and Mrs. Collins, was collaterally estopped, by virtue of *Brown*, from asserting that it had a valid ordinance prohibiting short-term leases as against any property owner in Sandy City, prior to the enactment of a valid ordinance. *Hill vs. Seattle First Nat. Bank*, 827 P. 2d 241 (Utah 1992)

The additional inquiry set forth in *Norman v. Murray First Thrift & Loan Co.*, *supra*, should govern in this case. The facts in the instant case are not similar to the facts in *Moitie*. The instant case was not a complex, multi-party suit involving questions of federal and state law. While *Moitie* is controlling case law in the federal court system, *Moitie* did not overrule *Norman* and there are valid reasons for applying the analysis set forth in *Norman* to the facts in the instant case.

The *Brown* decision essentially stated that Sandy City had no ordinance in effect that would prohibit any property owner in Sandy City from leasing their

property short term. Every property owner utilizing his property for that purpose prior to the enactment of a valid ordinance prohibiting such use would be eligible for “grandfathering” under the non-conforming use ordinance. However, in the instant case, the Petitioners John and June Collins are foreclosed from benefiting from the holding in *Brown* because they did not appeal a District Court ruling that was overruled by *Brown*. This is manifestly unjust and unfair. In the concurring opinion in *Moitie*, supra, Justice Blackmun wrote:

“First, I, for one, would not close the door upon the possibility that there are cases in which the doctrine of res judicata must give way to what the Court of Appeals referred to as ‘overriding concerns of public policy and simple justice.’ Professor Moore has noted: ‘Just as res judicata is occasionally qualified by an overriding, competing principle of public policy, so occasionally it needs an equitable tempering.’” [citation omitted] 452 U.S. 394, 403.

Likewise, in the case of *Reed v. Allen*, cited in *Moitie*, Justice Cardozo wrote, in dissent, concerning the application of the doctrine of res judicata, “A system of procedure is perverted from its proper function when it multiplies impediments to justice without the warrant of clear necessity.” 286 U.S. 191, 209 (1932).

The instant case is a case where the doctrine of res judicata needs an equitable tempering. John and June Collins are essentially being penalized for pursuing their legal remedy. They cannot benefit from the holding in *Brown* but any other property owner who did not pursue a legal remedy prior to *Brown* can benefit. This is an unfair and unjust result, and it serves no valid, judicial purpose. Such a result simply perpetuates the trial court’s erroneous ruling in the 1996 case. Appellate courts of other jurisdictions have declined to apply res judicata as a bar in these circumstances.

In the case of *Cassidy v. Board of Education*, 557 A.2d 227 (Md. 1989), the Court of Appeals of Maryland considered the issue of whether a plaintiff could sue the Board of Education even though her prior suit was dismissed for failure to allege notice to the Board. An intervening appellate court decision had ruled that educational boards were not municipal organizations and thus were not subject to the notice provision in question. *Id.* at 233. The Maryland Court of Appeals noted that continuing to apply the notice statute in that case would compel Cassidy to meet a standard no other plaintiff needed to meet and would provide the Board with a windfall by way of a mistake which could still be corrected. *Id.* at 234. That Court, citing the *Restatement (Second)* §28(2), held that “where there has been an intervening change in the applicable legal context, an issue of law may be relitigated to avoid an inequitable administration of the laws.” *Id.* The Maryland Court of Appeals further stated that, “Our conclusion that issue preclusion does not apply here is consistent with the rule’s traditional purpose. The rule ‘is designed to prevent repetitious lawsuits over matters which have once been decided and which have remained substantially static, factually and legally. It is not meant to create vested rights in decisions that have become obsolete or erroneous with time.’ . . .” [citation omitted] *Cassidy v. Board of Education*, 557 A. 2d 227, 234 (Md. 1989).

Other state courts have likewise held that *res judicata* and its related doctrines are flexible, not absolute, and should give way in extraordinary circumstances such as a change in law. See, e.g., *Snyder v. Newcomb Oil Co., Inc.*, 603 N.Y.S. 2d 1010 (A.D. 4 Dept. 1993); *Foley v. Roche*, 447 N.Y.S. 2d 528 (A.D. 2 Dept. 1982). This is consistent

with the general rule that statutes operate only prospectively, while judicial decisions operate retrospectively because they theoretically reflect interpretations of laws as they always should have been. *United States vs. Security Industrial Bank*, 459 U.S. 70, 79 (1982).

In the case at bar, applying issue preclusion as a bar to the 1998 suit by Mr. and Mrs. Collins does nothing to further the traditional purpose of the rule barring relitigation of issues between the same parties. On the contrary, it gives Sandy City the right to perpetuate an erroneous ruling as to one property owner while it is precluded from applying that ruling to every other property owner, similarly situated, in its jurisdiction.

CONCLUSION

The intervening change in the law effected by *Brown, et. al. v. Sandy City Board of Adjustment*, 957 P.2d 207 (Utah App. 1998) established that the ruling of the District Court in the 1996 case filed by John Collins and June Collins against Sandy City was erroneous and it is therefore inappropriate to apply issue preclusion in this case under the principles enunciated by this Court in *Norman v. Murray First Thrift & Loan Company*, supra. The Utah Court of Appeals agreed that *Norman* correctly stated the law that a subsequent change in the controlling law generally relieves a party from the application of *res judicata*. The Court of Appeals also agreed that there had been a change in the law in this case. Applying issue preclusion in this case does nothing to further the traditional purpose of that rule. It would only serve to perpetuate an error and achieves an inequitable and unjust result in the context of this case.

This Court should apply the principles enunciated in *Norman v. Murray First Thrift & Loan Co.*, supra, reversing the decision of the Utah Court of Appeals based upon the intervening change in law brought about by *Brown, et. al. v. Sandy City Board of Adjustment*, supra. This would be consistent with the general rule that judicial decisions be applied retrospectively to reflect an interpretation of the law as it should have been.