Brigham Young University Law School BYU Law Digital Commons

Utah Supreme Court Briefs

2001

John Collins and June Collins v. Sandy City Board of Adjustment and Sandy City Corporation: Brief of Appellee

Utah Supreme Court

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

- I. The Collinses improperly raise a new issue for the first time before this court.

 The Collinses improperly raise an argument for the first time on certiorari to this court,²¹ the argument that the issue preclusion applies against the City in this case because the City lost the case of *Brown et al. v. Sandy City Board of Adjustment*, in what is called nonmutual collateral estoppel. They cite no valid authority for their argument, nor has the applicability of offensive nonmutual collateral estoppel been decided in Utah, nor has the use of nonmutual collateral estoppel against a City been decided.
- II. <u>Collinses' Arguments Attacking Moitie Are Unsound.</u> The Court of Appeals in its decision below, relied in part upon *Federated Dept. Stores v. Moitie*, 452 U.S. 394, 101 S.Ct. 2424, 69 L.Ed.2d 103 (1981). The efforts of the Property Owners attempting to differentiate *Moitie* from this case on factual grounds do not hold up.
- III. <u>Issue preclusion should apply here under the Rest. 2d Judgments §28(2)</u>

 <u>balancing test.</u> Courts have stated strong interests in precluding relitigation of cases

²⁰ Collins v. Sandy City Board of Adjustment, 2000 UT 371, 16 P.3d 1251

See DeBry v. Noble, 889 P.2d 428, 444 (Utah 1995) ("Issues not raised in the court of appeals may not be raised on certiorari unless the issue arose for the first time out of the court of appeals' decision."); see also Harmon v. Ogden City Civil Service Commission, 917 P.2d 1082 (1996).

which have once been decided on the merits. Even if the Court of Appeals erred in relying on *Moitie* and other claims preclusion cases for its decision, issue preclusion is still appropriate to apply in this case. The Property Owners argue that where there is an intervening appellate decision between the first and second cases which changes the law, issue preclusion, or collateral estoppel, should not preclude relitigation of the issue, citing *Cassidy v. Board of Education*²² and Restatement (Second) Judgments §28(2).

In collateral estoppel cases where there has been a substantial change of law between the first and second cases, the Restatement and other authorities call for a balancing of the interests in repose against the interest in continuing the second lawsuit. The property interests in reliance and repose of the City's citizens, and particularly the homeowners in the neighborhoods where these three ski rental homes were used, who might now be affected by the rental of these homes from week to week by reopening the issue, outweighs the any interest of the Owners in being treated like other ski owners who won the *Brown* case. The interests of the neighbors are all the more compelling here because the Owners made a deliberate choice not to appeal the first Board of Adjustment decision and district court judgment in this case. The balancing of interests therefore favors the City in this case, and issue preclusion should be applied.

In any event, the Collinses failed to submit any evidence of their nonconforming use to the Sandy City Board of Adjustment when they came before it the second time.

²² 316 Md. 50, 557 A.2d 227 (Md. App. 1989).

Their appeal would therefore fail even if this court corrects the decision of the Court of Appeals.

ARGUMENT

I. THE COLLINSES MAY NOT RAISE THE ISSUE OF NONMUTUAL COLLATERAL ESTOPPEL AGAINST THE CITY AT THIS STAGE

Besides to its being outside the scope of the issue before the court, the Collinses improperly raise the argument that collateral estoppel prevents the City from its position in this action for the first time in their brief to this court.²³ Offensive use of collateral estoppel is generally inappropriate where a party could easily have joined in the litigation it seeks to benefit from by use of the case.²⁴ The Collinses could have appealed the district court judgment in the first case in this matter, and then have moved for consolidation with Brown, et al. in the appeal on the ski rental issue to the Court of Appeals, thereby avoiding the waste of resources involved in this litigation. Instead, they chose to sit back and wait to see what happened in the Brown case, and now seek to use it to their advantage. Such nonmutual offensive use of collateral estoppel tends to

²³ See DeBry v. Noble, 889 P.2d 428, 444 (Utah 1995) ("Issues not raised in the court of appeals may not be raised on certiorari unless the issue arose for the first time out of the court of appeals' decision.").

²⁴ see Parklane Hosiery Co. v. Shore, 439 U.S. 322, 99 S. Ct. 645, 58 L. Ed. 2d 552 (1979)

increase litigation, unlike defensive use of collateral estoppel, which tends to reduce litigation, one of the reasons it is disfavored.²⁵

The Property Owners rely on *Hill v. Seattle First Nat. Bank*, ²⁶ but that case does not support their assertion of offensive nonmutual collateral estoppel against the City, a doctrine without precedent in Utah. ²⁷

II. THE ARGUMENTS ATTACKING MOITIE ARE UNSOUND.

The Collinses argue that the Court of Appeals erred in relying upon *Moitie* for its decision applying issue preclusion to their second case. They attempt to distinguish *Moitie* from the present case on several grounds. First, these Property Owners argue that in *Moitie*, the precluded parties in that federal antitrust case (plaintiffs Moitie and Brown) were original parties to the decision that resulted in the reversal of the law, whereas in this case, the Collinses were not parties to the suit which changed the law in Brown.²⁸ In fact, Moitie, Brown, and the other original plaintiffs against Federated Department Stores, the defendant, each brought separate suits which were all assigned to the same federal judge and dismissed at the same time, but were never, apparently,

²⁵ See id.

²⁶ 827 P.2d 241 (Utah 1992)

²⁷ See Utah v. Clinton Perank, 858 P.2d 927 (Utah 1992), footnote 3, J. Zimmerman dissenting. Hill v. Seattle First Nat. Bank, 827 P.2d 241 (Utah 1992), an opinion by J. Zimmerman, was a defensive use of collateral estoppel.

²⁸ Collinses' Brief at 8.

consolidated into a single case. This factual distinction is thus without foundation.

The Collinses also argue that the cases are different because in *Moitie*, the original plaintiffs were "forum shopping." ²⁹ Why this should be significant is not explained, if it was the case, ³⁰ nor is it discernable.

The Collinses also distinguish *Moitie* from the present case on the ground that the change in law in *Moitie* was entirely unanticipated, whereas in the first Collins v. Sandy City case, the appeal by Brown was a fully prepared appeal pending before the Utah Court of Appeals when the Collinses elected not to appeal the adverse district court judgment. Collinses' Brief at 7. This distinction is of little consequence since any appeal to an appellate court has the potential of creating a change in law. Surely the parties bringing the appeal in the Moitie case anticipated a change in law; otherwise, they would not likely have gone to the trouble of appealing. To distinguish appellate cases on the basis of which would result in a change in the law can only be practiced in hindsight.

Snyder v. Newcomb Oil Co, Inc.,³¹ relied on by the Collinses, is not on point since that case involved claim preclusion and an intervening legislative change, rather than a

²⁹ Collinses' Brief at 8.

Moitie, one of the two plaintiffs in the original action in the Supreme Court case, did file its original action against Federated in state court; Brown, the other, filed in federal district court. After removal of Moitie's case to the federal district court, and dismissal, both parties filed in a single suit in state court which Federated again removed to federal district court, where it was dismissed.

³¹ 603 N.Y.S.2d 1010 (App. Div. 1993)

change in court precedent, as here. Likewise, *Foley v. Roche*,³² also cited in the brief of the Collinses, was a case involving overruling the law of the case rather than issue preclusion.

Moitie, cited as support by the Court of Appeals in its decision, while a claims preclusion, and not an issue preclusion case, is nonetheless important for the general rule that courts are unwilling to allow a party to relitigate a case after foregoing an opportunity to appeal in the first instance. Although the context is somewhat different here, the need for finality in judgements is nonetheless an important consideration in this matter.

III. EVEN IF THE COURT OF APPEALS WAS IN ERROR IN RELYING ON *MOITIE*, ISSUE PRECLUSION SHOULD STILL APPLY HERE.

A. Courts favor repose and finality of judgments in reducing redundant litigation

Justice Harlan of the U.S. Supreme Court said that the object for which civil courts have been established in our society is to secure the peace and repose of the community by the settlement of matters which can be determined by judicial administration, and that the enforcement of judgments is essential to the maintenance of social order.³³ But for such enforcement, the assistance of the courts would not be

³² 447 N.Y.S.2d 528 (App. Div. 1982)

³³ Southern Pacific R.R. v. U.S., 168 U.S. 1, 48, 18 S.Ct. 18, 27, 42 L.Ed. 355 (1897)

sought in resolving disputes.³⁴ One of the central objectives of our modern system of civil procedure is putting an end to litigation by according finality to judgments.³⁵ The established rule is that preclusion cannot be defeated by electing to forgo an available opportunity to appeal.³⁶ Once the time for appeal has run, a judgment is res judicata without regard to the fact that an appeal might have been taken to a higher court.³⁷

Both branches of res judicata, claims preclusion, and issue preclusion, serve the important judicial purpose of protecting litigants from the burden of relitigating the same issue with the same party or his privy.³⁸ They serve the additional benefit of promoting judicial economy by preventing needless litigation.³⁹

The Owners argue that application of issue preclusion is unfair inasmuch as they are "being penalized for pursuing their legal remedy." ⁴⁰ But it is their decision not to pursue their legal remedy when they could have which created this second unnecessary

³⁴ *Id*.

³⁵ Marcus, Redish, Sherman, *Civil Procedure: A Modern Approach* (2nd ed.) at 1091 Each branch promotes the important judicial policy of preventing parties from relitigating a claim or issue.

³⁶ Wright, Miller and Cooper, Federal Practice and Procedure: Appeals Foregone, Pending or Unavailable §4433 at 305.

 $^{^{37}}$ *Id*.

³⁸ Penrod v. Nu Creation Creme, Inc., 669 P.2d 873, 874-75 (Utah 1983)

³⁹ Blonder-Tongue Laboratories, Inc. v. University of Illinois Foundation, 402 U.S. 313, 328-329 (1971)

⁴⁰ Collinses' brief at 9.

suit. Their failure to appeal the earlier decision of the Board of Adjustment⁴¹ and the district court judgment was unjustified where there was no decision in Utah on the issue being tried, notwithstanding that other property owners had appealed in the Brown, et al. v. Sandy City Board of Adjustment case.⁴² The Owners argue that their failure to appeal was in the interest of judicial economy. An appeal to the Court of Appeals and a motion to consolidate their case with the appellants in *Brown*, however, would have served that interest, and these Owners would have also preserved their legal position, thereby avoiding the wastefulness and redundancy of this second lawsuit.

The Owners' position also overlooks the effect that such a change would have on those who have relied upon the Board of Adjustment and district court decisions at earlier stages on these properties: the many homeowners who expressed such opposition and concern about these motel-like commercial uses in their neighborhoods, with different renters coming and going from week to week. Those neighborhood owners

The Maison Drive property was not listed in the appeal to the district court in the Amended Complaint, R. at 174. The Board of Adjustment decision therefore became final when the Owners did not appeal to the decision on the legality of the short-term rentals as to that property to the Third District Court. §10-9-708(3), Utah Code Ann. (1999) (petition for district court review is barred unless filed within 30 days after the Board of Adjustment decision.)

This case differs from most change of law by court decision cases in this respect. There was no settled rule in Utah before the *Brown* decision on whether a city's ordinances could prohibit a zoning use by exception. The decision of these Property Owners not to appeal was therefore not done in reliance upon anything other than the district court determination. If they felt that this ruling was wrong, they should have sought to correct it appeal.

may have relied upon the decision of the Board and the judgment of the district court, but for which they might have sold their homes and moved away to other neighborhoods.

After the passage of time, the market conditions for such a sale may be less favorable. In a similar position are those families which may have purchased homes near one of these ski houses based on the earlier unappealed judgments. As Wright, Miller and Cooper say on the problems of expanding the exceptions to res judicata based on intervening changes of law or fact, "If issue preclusion is to mean anything, such reliance should be protected."

Property rights are one of the areas where the interests in reliance and repose are particularly compelling, and where the protections of issue preclusion should be maintained. When . . . title to real property is at issue, the need for finality is at its apex."

"Just as broad public interests may ease the way to reconsideration, so important private interests of repose or reliance may require that preclusion apply despite the clearest changes of the legal climate," citing, as examples, pension benefits won, and title to property as deserving the same protection. *id.* at 263.45 Wright, et al., conclude

Wright, Miller, and Cooper, Federal Practice and Procedure: Issue Preclusion - Questions of Law and Law Application §4425, at 252. This treatise may hereinafter be referred to as 18 Wright §___.

⁴⁴ American Estate Management Corp. v. International Investment and Development Corp., 986 P.2d 765 (Ut. App. 1999); See Farrell v. Brown, 729 P.2d 1090, 1093 (Idaho Ct. App. 1986); 18 Wright, §4408, at 65 (1981).

⁴⁵ 18 Wright §4425 at 252.

by arguing for a balancing test where there has been a change of law, and where there are offsetting interests in reliance and repose. "A balance must be struck between the clarity of the change, special needs presented by specific areas of the law, and particularly strong needs to preserve the values of preclusion." ⁴⁶

The Restatement (Second) Judgments also acknowledges the need for a balancing between the importance of stability in the legal relationship between the immediate parties and problems of disparate legal treatment.⁴⁷

B. The balancing of interests here favors applying issue preclusion.

The balancing of interests for and against preclusion in this case must weigh on one side of the scale the Owners' need for equal treatment with other similarly situated owners, and on the other side, their calculated determination to forego an available appeal on a point of law which had not been decided by any appellate court in Utah, and the interests of families living in the neighborhoods affected by the Owners' short-term rentals. These neighbors may have relied upon the unappealed judgment in the earlier case. While the Owners declined to submit evidence on such issues as the

⁴⁶ *Id.* at 264.

⁴⁷ Rest. 2d Judgments §28 Comment c at 278. The reference therein to the legal relationships between the "immediate parties" should apply to the City in this case, where the City's enforcement of its ordinances is on behalf of the residents of the neighborhoods where these short-term rentals occurred. *See State v. Bishop*, 717 P.2d 261 (Utah 1986) (Individuals have an interest in being free from harm, and government has an obligation to protect individuals who are otherwise defenseless.)

purchase price they paid for the homes which they turned into rental units or any improvements they may have made to them, one can suppose that they paid a fair residential market value for the properties and their subsequent sale or use as long-term rentals, allowed by City ordinances, is a reasonable rate of return on those properties. A balancing of these interests in this instance clearly favors the application of preclusion in this case.⁴⁸

The case of Marsland v. International Society of Krishna Consciousness, ⁴⁹ cited in Cassidy v. Board of Education, ⁵⁰ relied on by the Collinses, is instructive in this regard. The International Society of Krishna Consciousness (Society) leased a large home in a residential zone in the city of Honolulu where it held religious services and gatherings, and also had more than 30 people live, more than five of whom were unrelated. The city brought a criminal case against the Society for violating its ordinances prohibiting more than five unrelated individuals from living in a residence. The Society defended in district court claiming they were a church, which is an allowed use in a residential zone. Honolulu then brought an action for injunctive and declaratory relief against the Society to prohibit it from continuing to use the home as a residence for

Although exceptions to collateral estoppel present less danger to interests of repose and reliance than do exceptions to claims preclusion, see 18 Wright §4415, Esslinger v. Baltimore City, 95 Md. App. 607, 622 A.2d 774 (Md.Sp.App. 1993), footnote 5, the balancing is still required in issue preclusion cases as provided in the Rest. 2d and Wright.

⁴⁹ 66 Haw. 119, 657 P.2d 1035 (1983)

⁵⁰ 316 Md. 50, 557 A.2d 227 (1989)

more than five unrelated persons. The Society raised collateral estoppel. The court, applying Rest. 2d §28(2), determined that fairness to all others in the city required it to refuse preclusion in this case. "In applying the doctrine of res judicata as [the Society] would have us do, we wold be permitting it to continue to violate the ordinance without fear of governmental sanctions while at the same time warning other parties that the same ordinance would be enforced against them. This would be an absurd and unreasonable application of the doctrine." ⁵¹

In support of its decision, the Hawaii Supreme Court quoted the following passage on the issue of whether a city can apply for an injunction even after an acquittal of a criminal charge, ". . . [T]he rights of other property owners in the zoning district where the violations occurred must necessarily be considered. Only by injunction could these property rights be protected and the objectives of the ordinance promoted." ⁵² The rights of the property owners in the affected neighborhoods in Sandy need this Court's protection of their rights against similar intrusive property uses.

Of course, the Collinses may claim that *Marsland* only supports their argument that even in a zoning case, collateral estoppel will be overridden. But the language of the opinion suggests that the property interest of the larger community is preeminent.⁵³ The

⁵¹ 66 Haw. at 125

⁵² 66 Haw. at 126, quoting *City of New Orleans v. Lafon*, 61 So.2d 270 (La. App. 1952)

⁵³ The opinion cites other jurisdictions where similar decisions were reached in favor of zoning ordinances when balanced against the interest of the private property owner in a

Collinses argue that they are unfairly treated because other property owners are allowed to rent their homes as short-term rentals pursuant to the *Brown* decision, but they alone are not. *Marsland* makes clear that it is not just the interest of the individual property owner which is weighed in these equities. The entire community must follow the zoning ordinances to make a city liveable.⁵⁴

C. Cassidy is distinguishable from this case

The Property Owners cite Cassidy v. Board of Education⁵⁵ in support of their position. In that case the plaintiffs' complaint for an assault and rape suffered on the grounds of the public school was dismissed for a failure of proper notice to the school board. The plaintiffs did not have an opportunity to litigate the case fully on its merits in

criminal issue preclusion context.

Where a party claims that the strict application of the zoning ordinances is unreasonable, or unfair, such as in cases involving prior nonconforming uses, variances, and special exceptions, zoning codes, including Sandy City's normally provide for a relief valve through the board of adjustment. The purpose of the board of adjustment, composed of members of the community familiar with its values, needs, and the zoning ordinances, is to make these fact-intensive determinations in applying the zoning ordinances. The Collinses, like others, had an opportunity to come before the Board and present evidence showing that their properties qualified as nonconforming, but put on no evidence in their support, and so the short-term rental use was not allowed. Of course, they are still allowed to do long-term rentals.

⁵⁵ 316 Md. 50, 557 A.2d 227 (1989)

the first instance because the case was dismissed before an answer was even filed;⁵⁶ whereas the Collinses had a full opportunity to litigate.

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